
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  December 13, 2023 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

 
PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 

Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon. 
 

(b) The Grand Ronde Sanitary District Board is meeting on December 20, 2023 at 9:15 a.m. The meeting 
will take place in the Polk County Courthouse, 850 Main Street, Dallas, OR, 97338. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM December 6, 2023 

  6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

  7. ALYRICA NETWORKS RURAL BROADBAND PROJECT – Madison Yock & Jason Richards 

  8.  AMBULANCE SERVICE AREA (ASA) DISCUSSION – Greg Hansen 

 
 
 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
        

(a) Polk County Contract No. 23-232, Oregon Health Authority 
(Rosana Warren, Public Health) 
 

     
 

 

 

                              THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 
 
  ADJOURNMENT 

    
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES December 6, 2023  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Gordon declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Mordhorst and Commissioner Pope were present. 
 
Staff present:  
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 
 

 
3. COMMENTS 

Jeremy announced that FCO and our family navigators were able to connect a formerly 
homeless family with permanent housing and stated that the program is working very well. 

 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.  
 
5.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING OF November 29, 2023 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF November 29, 2023. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
 
 
6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 

 
 
The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

a) Polk County Contract No. 23-230, Oregon Health Authority 
(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 

 



December 6, 2023 
Page 2 

 

  

 
There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Pope adjourned the meeting 
at 9:01 a.m. 
 
 

 

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Jeremy Gordon, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Craig Pope, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: December 13, 2023 



Polk County
Rural Broadband Project 

Closeout and Future 
Considerations

Presented by

Jason Richards, Chief Revenue Officer,  Alyrica Networks

Madison Yock, Public Partnerships Coordinator, Alyrica Networks 



Agenda 

• Current State
• Project Proposal
• Future Projects and Funding Considerations 

Commissioner Craig Pope and the Alyrica Team at the Lower Reuben Boise Tower



Current State

• Since 2020 Alyrica has constructed 11 
new towers in partnership with Polk County 
that now service 770 customers in the 
county.

• The 2022 grant project added 5 towers 
operating on the Tarana G1 platform.  With 
service currently being provided to 240 
customers in the target area.

• Project was started on April 30th 2022 and 
completed on June 16th 2023.  With grant 
funding of $795K plus additional match by 
Alyrica Networks.

• Alyrica currently serves over 1,400 
customers in Polk County with over 315 on 
Tarana G1.

2022 North Dallas 
Project Map



Project Proposal

• Eola Hills Project Area will serve 172 addresses of the 
182 unserved addresses identified.

• Customers will be served using Tarana G1 platform that 
will provide speeds up to 600 Mbps down and 100 Mbps 
up.

• Project cost approximately $150,000 plus match.



Approximately $900M!

Future Projects 
and 

Funding Considerations

BEAD 
$688M (2025)

Last mile and middle mile 
infrastructure

Digital Equity  

Approximately $50M (2025)

Broadband access, devices, 
digital skills training / literacy 

ARPA Capital Projects Fund 
$157M (Q1 2024)

Last mile infrastructure

BTAP 
Approximately $7.9M (Q1 

2024)
Technical Assistance



Thank you 

Contact Information 

Jason Richards, Alyrica Networks Madison Yock, Alyrica Networks
Jason.Richards@team.alyrica.net Madison.Yock@team.alyrica.net
541.929.3330 541.929.3330

mailto:Jason.Richards@team.alyrica.net
mailto:Madison.Yock@team.alyrica.net


 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  3558 

 Department:  Health Services: Public Health  Consent Calendar Date:  December 13, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Oregon Health Authority 

 Address:  635 Capitol Street NE, Room 350 

 City, State, Zip:  Salem, OR 97301 

 Effective Dates - From:  October 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  $332,748.26 

 Background: 

 The County receives funds from the Oregon Health Authority to provide Public Health Services to 
 residents of the County by way of a grant. This contract is the fourth amendment to the initial award 
 from the State. The grant award may be modified from time-to-time throughout the fiscal year to 
 reflect changes to funds and/or programs that are made as part of the grant. 

 Discussion: 

 This fourth Amendment provides funding to the Local Public Health Authority for the continued 
 Program Service delivery under PE 01-10 - OIP, PE10-02 - STD and PE13 - TPEP for a total 
 amendment award amount of $332,748.26. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The total for this amendment is $  332,748.26  for FY24,  which are carry over funds from FY23. The 
 Public Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this funding. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign amendment 4 to IGA 180027 with the Oregon Health 
 Authority. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

180027 TLH AMENDMENT #4 PAGE 1 OF 7 PAGES 

Agreement #180027 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 
2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE 

FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document is available in alternate formats such as 
Braille, large print, audio recordings, Web-based communications and other electronic formats. To request an 
alternate format, please send an e-mail to dhs-oha.publicationrequest@state.or.us or call 503-378-3486 (voice) 
or 503-378-3523 (TTY) to arrange for the alternative format. 

This Fourth Amendment to Oregon Health Authority 2023-2025 Intergovernmental Agreement for the 
Financing of Public Health Services, effective July 1, 2023, (as amended the “Agreement”), is between the State 
of Oregon acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority (“OHA”) and Polk County, (“LPHA”), the entity 
designated, pursuant to ORS 431.003, as the Local Public Health Authority for Polk County.  OHA and LPHA 
are each a “Party” and together the “Parties” to the Agreement. 

RECITALS 
WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the Fiscal Year 2024 (FY24) Financial Assistance Award 

set forth in Exhibit C of the Agreement. 
WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the Exhibit J information required by 2 CFR Subtitle B 

with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200; 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants and agreements contained herein and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 
1. This Amendment is effective on October 1, 2023, regardless of the date this amendment has been fully

executed with signatures by every Party and when required, approved by the Department of Justice.
However, payments may not be disbursed until the Amendment is fully executed.

2. The Agreement is hereby amended as follows:
a. Exhibit C, Section 1 of the Agreement, entitled “Financial Assistance Award” for FY24 is

hereby superseded and replaced in its entirety by Attachment A, entitled “Financial Assistance
Award (FY24)”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Attachment A must
be read in conjunction with Section 3 of Exhibit C.

b. Exhibit J of the Agreement entitled “Information required by 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at
2 CFR Part 200” is amended to add to the federal award information datasheet as set forth in
Attachment B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

3. LPHA represents and warrants to OHA that the representations and warranties of LPHA set forth in
Section 4 of Exhibit F of the Agreement are true and correct on the date hereof with the same effect as if
made on the date hereof.

4. Capitalized words and phrases used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in
the Agreement.

5. Except as amended hereby, all terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect.

Polk County Contract No. 23-232 (Amendment 4 to 23-109)



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #4 PAGE 2 OF 7 PAGES 

6. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which when taken together 
shall constitute one agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories 
to the same counterpart.  Each copy of this Amendment so executed shall constitute an original. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates set forth 

below their respective signatures. 

7. Signatures. 

STATE OF OREGON, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 

Approved by:   

Name: /for/ Nadia A. Davidson  

Title: Director of Finance  

Date:   

POLK COUNTY LOCAL PUBLIC HEALTH AUTHORITY 

Approved by:   

Printed Name:   

Title:   

Date:   

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE – APPROVED FOR LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

Agreement form group-approved by Steven Marlowe, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Tax and 
Finance Section, General Counsel Division, Oregon Department of Justice by email on August 11, 2023, 
copy of email approval in Agreement file. 

REVIEWED BY OHA PUBLIC HEALTH ADMINISTRATION 

Reviewed by:   

Name: Rolonda Widenmeyer (or designee)  

Title: Program Support Manager  

Date:   

  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #4 PAGE 3 OF 7 PAGES 

Attachment A 
Financial Assistance Award (FY24) 

 

 
 
 
 



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #4 PAGE 4 OF 7 PAGES 

 

 
 
 

Footnotes and Comments on following pages. 
 
 

  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #4 PAGE 5 OF 7 PAGES 

 

 
 
 

Comments on following page. 
 

  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #4 PAGE 6 OF 7 PAGES 

 

 
 
 
 



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #4 PAGE 7 OF 7 PAGES 

Attachment B 
Information required by CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200 

 

 
 

 
 

NH23IP922626
03/31/21
7/1/2023-6/30/2024
CDC
93.268
Immunization Cooperative 
Agreements
38,627,576
CDC-RFA-IP19-1901 
Immunization and Vaccines for 
Children
Divya Cassity
17.64
FALSE
No
53856
50404

Agency UEI Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $137,731.57 $137,731.57

Federal Aw ard Identif ication Number:

Federal Aw ard Date:

Budget Performance Period:

Aw arding Agency:

PE01-10 OIP - CARES

CFDA Number:

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Aw ard:

Project Description:

Aw arding Official:

Indirect Cost Rate:

Research and Development (T/F):

HIPPA

PCA:
Index:

NH25PS005149
07/13/23
01/01/2023-01/31/2024
CDC
93.977
Preventive Health Services - 
Sexually Transmitted Diseases 
Control Grants
$3,501,895.00
STD Prevention & Control
Cassandra Davis
18.06
FALSE
No
53192
50403

Agency UEI Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $179,384.60 $179,384.60

Federal Aw ard Identif ication Number:

Federal Aw ard Date:

Budget Performance Period:

Aw arding Agency:

PE10-02 Sexually Transmitted Disease (STD)

CFDA Number:

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Aw ard:

Project Description:

Aw arding Official:

Indirect Cost Rate:

Research and Development (T/F):

HIPPA

PCA:
Index:


	23-232 (Amendment 4 to 23-109).pdf
	2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE
	FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT


	ADPA740.tmp
	Polk County�Rural Broadband Project ��Closeout and Future Considerations
	Agenda 
	Current State
	Project Proposal
	�Approximately $900M!
	Thank you 




